
 

NEW HAMPSHIRE LOTTERY® COMMISSION 
14 INTEGRA DRIVE, CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301 

MINUTES OF COMMISSION MEETING 
JANUARY 15, 2013 10:00 A.M. 

 
 PRESENT: 
 Debra Douglas, Chairman 
 Paul J. Holloway, Commissioner 
 Doug Scamman, Commissioner 
 Charles McIntyre, Executive Director  
 Diane Campbell, Administrative Assistant 
 Irene Nadeau, Games Manager 
 Len Mannino, Security Director 
 Robert Preston, Games Manager 
 Lynda Plante, Deputy Director 
 Jim Bouley, Dennehy & Bouley 
 Maura McCann, Product Marketing Manager 
 John Papile, Intralot 
 Kristen Pare’, Intralot 
 Terry Patterson, Intralot 
 Rose Longo-White, Griffin, York & Krause (GYK) 
 Travis York, Griffin, York & Krause 
 Susan Connolly, The Dupont Group 
     
 Chairman Douglas convened the Commission meeting at 10:00 a.m.  

 
1. ACCEPTANCE AND SIGNING OF PREVIOUS MINUTES: 

 
Commissioner Holloway made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Scamman, to 

approve the December, 2012 commission meeting minutes.  So voted, unanimous.   
 

2. FINANCIAL REPORT: 
 

Director McIntyre reported that the December transfer to Education was $6.7 million 
and the actual profit was $7.2 million, less a $500,000 over transfer for Fiscal Year 12.  The 
Lottery Commission’s transfers are approximately $1.7 million above plan.  A discussion 
was held on most recent sales and fiscal year comparisons.  

 
Director McIntyre stated the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report had been 

finalized and would be presented to the Fiscal Committee at their February 1, 2013 meeting.  
Director McIntyre distributed a report of lottery sales in the northern territory nearest to the 
Oxford Casino.   

 
 
 
 



 

 
New Hampshire Lottery Commission     January 15, 2013 
Commission meeting minutes       Page two 
 

 
 

3. INTRALOT  REPORT: 
 

John Papile stated that a “flash sale” promotion was scheduled for January 16  
between the hours of 7-8 a.m, 12-1 p.m., and 5-6 p.m.  The promotion will award a free 
$2.00 Megabucks Plus ticket to players who purchase a Powerball ticket during the specific 
hours.   Mr. Papile stated two software specifications were being finalized with the Hot Lotto 
specifications completed by tomorrow and the Cash 5 specifications by the end of the week.  
The Cash 5 specifications deadline is January 31.   

  
4. LUCKY FOR LIFE UPDATE: 

 
Director McIntyre provided a Lucky for Life update to the Commission.  Director 

McIntyre stated that the member states met last week in Massachusetts and voted  to change 
the second tier prize to fund a $25,000 a year prize for matching 5 of 6 numbers.  The game 
change to be effective September, 2013, was a result of research conducted by SocialSphere 
which indicated it was the most favored prize matrix among New Hampshire residents. 

 
5. ADVERTISING:  

 
Maura McCann stated the January 16 flash sale will cross promote the Powerball 

game and bring attention to the Megabucks Plus game.  Ms. McCann stated the Hot Lotto 
game change was being worked on and this change will be effective May, 2013.  Ms. 
McCann stated a decision was expected to be made in about a week by Maine, New 
Hampshire and Vermont, on Logos and proposed names for a new Tri-State game, which 
will be included in the specifications provided to Intralot. 

 
Ms. McCann stated about six new jackpot alerts will be produced for use over the 

next few years.  A “Patriots ticket” promotion will be held at the Seabrook One Stop on 
January 18 from 12:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m.  A two week Lucky for Life promotion is planned to 
celebrate the game’s one year anniversary in March.  All six member states will be 
participating in the promotion, although each state is running their own promotion.  In New 
Hampshire, ten $100 instant win prizes will be awarded each day to players who purchase a 
single $8.00 or greater Lucky for Life ticket from March 10-23. 

 
Ms. McCann updated the Commission on recent press releases.  Ms. McCann stated 

WMUR had contacted the Lottery to do a segment on winners and Bunny’s Superette store 
of Manchester, New Hampshire who sold a lot of winning tickets in 2012.  Ms. McCann 
stated that the New Hampshire Lottery Replay website was in the process of being refreshed.  
Also, in development is a mobile-enabled NH Lottery website.   

 



 

 
New Hampshire Lottery Commission    January 15, 2013 
Commission meeting minutes      Page three 

 
 
Rose Longo-White of Griffin, York & Krause stated that the Fisher Cats had 

requested a meeting with the Lottery and the advertising agency.  Director McIntyre stated 
that the Speedway was working with Scientific Games on a new instant ticket idea.  Director 
McIntyre stated he expected to see this new instant ticket proposal from Scientific Games 
within the next two weeks.  Director McIntyre stated that he expected to see proposals from 
other major sports teams such as the Patriots and Red Sox.  

 
Commissioner Holloway asked for an update on Blackjack and Megabuck Plus. 

Maura McCann stated she would follow up on the Blackjack topic and provide the 
information to the Commission.  Director McIntyre stated that the changes to the Megabucks 
Plus game were pending due to other game changes in process.   

 
Robert Preston updated the Commission on the recent Salem Stateline Paysaver 

“store makeover”.  Mr. Preston stated that instant ticket sales have increased significantly in 
the past month since the rearrangement of lottery items to a more prominent placement 
within the Stateline Paysaver.  Mr. Preston stated that a more comprehensive sales 
assessment would be done after a 90 day period to determine if the “SalesMaker” program 
will be expanded to other lottery retail locations.        

 
 

6. OTHER BUSINESS: 
 

A brief discussion was held on purchasing new lottery vans and the cost effectiveness 
of wrapping the vans or using decals on the vans to advertise the Lottery.  Commissioner 
Scamman made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Holloway, to approve purchasing of 
the new vans.  So voted, unanimous.  

 
7. NEXT MEETING: 
 

Chairman Douglas made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Holloway, to schedule 
the next Commission meeting for February 12, 2013 at 10:00 a.m.  So voted, unanimous.   
 

Commissioner Holloway made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Scamman, to 
adjourn the commission meeting at 10:50 a.m.  So voted, unanimous.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
New Hampshire Lottery Commission    January 15, 2013 
Commission meeting minutes      Page four 
 
 
 
 
 
 
           

       Debra Douglas, Chairman  
 
 
             
       Paul J. Holloway, Commissioner 
 
 

______________________________ 
Doug Scamman, Commissioner 
 

 
             


